
AGENDA 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Monday, February 7, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
   

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

1. Call to Order   
2. Roll Call  
3. Invocation and Pledge  
4. Announcements  
5. Approval of the Agenda  
6. Public Input  
7. Consent Agenda  

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held January 20, 2022 

b. Approve Appointment to the Dawsonville History Museum Board of Directors and the 
Downtown Development Authority 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

8. ZA-C2200079: Crawford West Properties, LLC has petitioned a zoning amendment for TMP 091 010, 
Located at 2279 HWY 9 North from R1 (Restricted Single-Family Residential) to HB (High Business).  
Public Hearing Date:  City Council on February 7, 2022.  City Council for a decision on February 21, 
2022. 
 

9. Ordinance No. 02-2022: An Ordinance By The City Of Dawsonville To Amend Its Zoning Ordinance; 
To Amend Provisions On Conditional Uses And Variances; To Amend Provisions Related To City 
Initiated Rezonings; To Address Buffers; To Provide For An Effective Date; To Provide For 
Severability; And For Other Purposes (First Reading:  January 20, 2022; Public Hearing, Second 
Reading and Consideration to Adopt: February 7, 2022) 
 

BUSINESS 
 

10. Modification Request for Improvement to Winners Circle  
11. Ordinance No. 03-2022: An Ordinance To Amend The Charter Of The City Of Dawsonville For The 

Purpose Of Reapportionment Of Representative Districts Pursuant To O.C.G.A. § 36-35-3 And § 36-
35-4.1 (First Reading and Adoption: February 7, 2022; Second Reading and Final Adoption: February 
21, 2022) 
 

     EXECUTIVE SESSION, IF NEEDED        

     ADJOURNMENT  
 
 

 
 

The next scheduled City Council meeting is Monday, February 21, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Those persons with disabilities who require reasonable accommodations in order to allow them to observe 
and/or participate in this meeting or who have questions regarding the accessibility of the meeting, should 
contact the Clerk at Dawsonville City Hall at 706-265-3256 at least two (2) business days prior to the meeting. 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                    CONSENT AGENDA           

   
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/07/2022     
   
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 

 
   CONSIDERATION AND APPROVAL OF ITEMS BELOW; SEE ATTACHED 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS  
 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held January 20, 2022 

b. Approve Appointment to the Dawsonville History Museum Board of Directors 
and the Downtown Development Authority 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #       7     
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:                       APPROVE MINUTES    

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/07/2022     
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #  NA      

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 
     TO APPROVE THE MINUTES FROM: 

 
• REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION HELD JANUARY 20, 2022 

 
 

 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

 
 
     
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
           
  AMEND OR APPROVE AS PRESENTED 
 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
     REQUESTED BY:  Beverly Banister, City Clerk    

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

 AGENDA ITEM #   7a      
 

 

 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Thursday, January 20, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 1 of 3 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Mayor Eason called the meeting to order at 5:00 pm.   

2. ROLL CALL: Present were Councilmember John Walden, Councilmember Mark French, 
Councilmember Caleb Phillips, Councilmember William Illg, City Attorneys Kevin Tallant and Kip 
O’Kelley, City Manager Bob Bolz, City Clerk Beverly Banister, Public Works Director Trampas 
Hansard, Utilities Operation Manager Jacob Barr, Planning Director David Picklesimer and Finance 
Administrator Robin Gazaway. 
 

3. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE:  Invocation and Pledge were led by Councilmember French. 
 

4. ANNOUNCEMENTS:  Mayor Eason reminded the public the City Council meetings were scheduled 
for Thursdays this month due to the New Year and Martin Luther King holidays.  Councilmember 
Walden announced he has scheduled a public forum with local leaders which will be held at City Hall 
on January 25, 2022 from 6:00 pm to 7:30 pm and he invited the public to come out and participate.    

5. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA:  Motion to approve the agenda as presented made by J. Walden; 
second by W. Illg.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT:  Christopher Light, 112 N. Main St., Cumming – He spoke on behalf of Allen Street 
Properties and B&K Turner Family, LLP regarding item #10 on the agenda.  He stated they do have a 
signed plat reflecting the revised boundaries for the 32.937 acre property.  He also reminded the 
Council of the conditions they would agree to which he originally submitted in October; of particular 
importance is the condition in which they agree to connect to City water and sewer.   
 

7. CONSENT AGENDA:  Motion to approve the consent agenda for the following items (a) made by M. 
French; second by C. Phillips.  Vote carried unanimously in favor. 

 

a. Approve Minutes  
• Regular Meeting and Work Session held December 20, 2021 

 

8. EMPLOYEE RECOGNITION:  The Mayor and Council awarded Beth Tuttle a one-year service award 
and Clay Moss was awarded the January 2022 Employee of the Month award.  Additionally, the Public 
Works Department and the Utilities Department were given special recognition for their hard work 
over the weekend during the winter storm.   
 

BUSINESS 
 

9. ADMINISTER OATH OF OFFICE TO ELECTED OFFICIALS:  Mayor Mike Eason, Councilmember 
William Illg, Councilmember Caleb Phillips and Councilmember Mark French were sworn into office 
by City Attorney Kevin Tallant; they subsequently executed the oath of office as required by the City’s 
Charter, Section 3.16. 
 

10. ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043: Allen Street Properties, LLC and B & K Turner Family, LLP have 
petitioned to annex into the city limits of Dawsonville tract 2 with 32.937 acres (amended application) 
tract known as a portion of TMP 093 004 001, located at Perimeter Road, with a request to rezone 
from County Zoning of RSR (Residential Sub Rural) and RA (Restricted Agriculture) to City Zoning of 
R3 (Single Family Residential). Public Hearing Dates: Planning Commission on September 13, 2021 
and City Council on October 4, 2021. City Council for a decision on October 18, 2021 – Tabled from 
October 18, 2021 to December 6, 2021 to January 20, 2022 
 

Planning Director Picklesimer read the annexation and zoning request.  Mayor Eason stated the City 
has been working with Etowah Water and Sewer Authority for a water and sewer agreement; a 
response was received earlier that day, but the City Council has not had the opportunity to review it.  
He also stated there are several things the Council would like to discuss with the Turners and 
recommends postponing the decision. 
 

Motion made by J. Walden to postpone ANX-C2100043 and ZA-C2100043 until the March 21, 2022 
City Council meeting: second by W. Illg.  Councilmember Phillips stated both sides have worked well 
together to make the project work with the last hurdle being the agreement with Etowah Water and 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Thursday, January 20, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 2 of 3 
 

Sewer Authority.  Mayor Eason stated it is in the City’s best interest to have the agreement in place. 
Vote carried unanimously in favor.   
 

11. MAPLE HILL DRIVE DETENTION POND:  Attorney Tallant reviewed the details of the gratuities 
clause which prevents the government from providing a service for which it does not receive anything 
of value in return.  The City has been asked to clean out a detention pond that it does not own.  He 
stated if the City agrees to clean out the detention pond, then an agreement would need to be in place 
with the homeowners who contribute to the detention pond so that in the future, they are responsible 
for the maintenance of the detention pond.   
 

Motion to direct legal to prepare an agreement with the property owners of Maple Hill Drive to address 
the detention pond issue made by M. French; second by C. Phillips.  Councilmember Illg abstained 
from the vote.  Vote carried three in favor (French, Phillips, Walden) with one abstained (Illg).   
 
 

12. ORDINANCE NO. 01-2022: An Ordinance To Amend The Water And Sewer Ordinance Of The City 
Of Dawsonville; To Provide For Further Regulation Of Wastewater Suspended Solids, To Provide An 
Effective Date; And For Other Purposes. (First Reading: December 20, 2021; Second Reading And 
Consideration To Adopt: January 20, 2022) 
Utilities Operation Manager Barr read the second reading of the ordinance. 
Motion to approve the ordinance as presented made by W. Illg; second by M. French.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor. (Exhibit “A”) 

13. ORDINANCE NO. 02-2022: An Ordinance By The City Of Dawsonville To Amend Its Zoning 
Ordinance; To Amend Provisions On Conditional Uses And Variances; To Amend Provisions Related 
To City Initiated Rezonings; To Address Buffers; To Provide For An Effective Date; To Provide For 
Severability; And For Other Purposes (First Reading:  January 20, 2022; Public Hearing, Second 
Reading And Consideration To Adopt: February 7, 2022) 
 

Planning Director Picklesimer read the first reading of the ordinance amendment.  Councilmember 
Illg asked legal about the term “undisturbed buffer”.  Attorney Tallant stated the ordinance amendment 
does not describe any of the buffers as undisturbed and explained that by definition of the City of 
Dawsonville all buffers are undisturbed.  Mayor Eason asked if the ordinance amendment passes, 
would its effect be for all future development; Attorney Tallant stated all newly submitted development 
plans and such would have to comply.   
 

14. AWARD BID – CONSTRUCTION OF AN ADMINISTRATIVE BUILDING FOR PUBLIC WORKS 
AND UTILITIES DEPARTMENT:  Motion to award the bid to Bayne Development Group, LLC in the 
amount of $367,373.00 to be paid out of American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) funds, if permissible, or 
a combination of SPLOST VI and VII and the Enterprise fund made by W. Illg; second by C. Phillips. 
Vote carried unanimously in favor.  

WORK SESSION 
 

15. DISCUSS AMENDING PERSONNEL POLICY TO INCLUDE A FLOATING HOLIDAY FOR 
EMPLOYEES:  Finance Director Gazaway provided an overview of the request to add a floating 
holiday for City employees. 
 

Motion to approve the addition of a floating holiday for City employees made by J. Walden; second 
by M. French.  Vote carried unanimously in favor.  
 

STAFF REPORTS 
 

16. BOB BOLZ, CITY MANAGER:  City Manager Bolz provided his report in the agenda packet and 
reported all staff is back from quarantine and the leak adjustment for the month was $441.91.  
Councilmember Illg asked about the Christmas event for 2022 and Bolz stated it was a mutual 
decision with the Chamber to hold it prior to Thanksgiving this year kicking the season off about two 
weeks earlier; the anticipated date is November 19, 2022. 



MINUTES 
CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AND WORK SESSION  

G.L. Gilleland Council Chambers on 2nd Floor 
Thursday, January 20, 2022 

5:00 P.M. 
 

Page 3 of 3 
 

17. ROBIN GAZAWAY, FINANCE ADMINISTRATOR:  Financial reports representing fund balances 
and activity through December 31, 2021 were provided in the agenda packet.  No questions from 
Council. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:   
 

At 5:43 p.m. a motion to adjourn the meeting was made by W. Illg; second by J. Walden.  Vote carried 
unanimously in favor.  
 
 

                                                                               Approved this 7th day of February 2022 
 
By: CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 

         
   ___________________________________ 
   Mike Eason, Mayor 
 
   ___________________________________  
   Caleb Phillips, Councilmember Post 1 

 
         
   William Illg, Councilmember Post 2  

 
         
   John Walden, Councilmember Post 3 
 
   ___________________________________ 
   Mark French, Councilmember Post 4 
    
 
Attested: _________________________        
               Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk 



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



Exhibit "A"



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   APPROVE APPOINTMENT TO THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM BOARD 

OF DIRECTORS AND THE DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY  
 

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/07/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF DUSTIN HEARD TO THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY 
MUSEUM AND TO APPROVE APPOINTMENT OF JONATHAN CAMPBELL TO THE 
DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

    
 
 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
    DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM 

• DUSTIN HEARD:  3-YEAR TERM: 01/01/2022 – 12/31/2024 
• RECOMMENDED BY DHM BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
    DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

• JONATHAN CAMPBELL:  UNEXPIRED TERM THROUGH 12/31/2023 
• RECOMMENDED BY COUNCILMEMBER ILLG 

 

  
    VETTING COMPLETED BY DONNA; ALL REQUIREMENTS HAVE BEEN MET 

  
   
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY: Beverly Banister, City Clerk______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   7b     
 

 

 



                                           
 

 

SUBJECT:                                  ZA C2200079         _________ 
 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/07/2022       
 
PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: Public Hearing 
 
Rezoning application requires a public hearing before approval.   
 
HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 

 
1. Property is in Mark French Post 4 district. 

2. Applicant is requesting to rezone property from R1 district (Restricted Single Family Residential) to 

HB district (Highway Business). 

3. Applicant is requesting to rezone tract one 24.265ac and tract two 1.170ac for a total of 25.435ac. 

4. Property was Annexed into the city in 2006. 

5. The subject property adjoins county zoned RA district to the north, city zoned R1 zoning district to 
the west, city zoned Highway Business and RA district to the east and city zoned Highway Business 
and Neighborhood Business district to the south. 

 
6. 2018 comprehensive plan character area proposes residential use.  

 
7. Planning Commission approved 12/13/21 without conditions. 

 
________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPTIONS: 
 

 ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 

 
 

DEPARTMENT:  Planning and Zoning______________________________________________ 
 

REQUESTED BY: David Picklesimer_        ____________________________________________ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM # 8 
 































                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   ORDINANCE NO. 02-2022 – ZONING ORDINANCE AMENDMENT  

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE(S):  02/07/2022       
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

 PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: PUBLIC HEARING, SECOND READING AND CONSIDER ADOPTION 
 
ORDINANCE NO. 02-2022: AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE TO AMEND ITS ZONING 
ORDINANCE; TO AMEND PROVISIONS ON CONDITIONAL USES AND VARIANCES; TO AMEND 
PROVISIONS RELATED TO CITY INITIATED REZONINGS; TO ADDRESS BUFFERS; TO PROVIDE FOR 
AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES (FIRST 
READING:  JANUARY 20, 2022; PUBLIC HEARING, SECOND READING AND CONSIDERATION TO 
ADOPT: FEBRUARY 7, 2022) 
 
 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 
REQUEST TO AMEND THE CITY’S ZONING ORDINANCE CONCERNING EXPIRATION OF 
DEVELOPMENT ZONING STATUS AND ADDITIONAL UNDISTURBED BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 
 
COUNCIL APPROVED TO MOVE FORWARD WITH ZONING AMENDMENT AT THE 12/20/2021 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  
 
 

     OPTIONS: 
 
      
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
 
 
 
 

 
 

     REQUESTED BY:    David Picklesimer, Planning Director  

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #     9     
 

 

 



 

Page 1 of 4 
 

 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 02-2022 
 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE TO AMEND ITS ZONING 
ORDINANCE; TO AMEND PROVISIONS ON CONDITIONAL USES AND 
VARIANCES; TO AMEND PROVISIONS RELATED TO CITY INITIATED 
REZONINGS; TO ADDRESS BUFFERS; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; 
TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
 
 WHEREAS, the Constitution of the State of Georgia provides in article IX, Section II, 
Paragraph IV thereof, that the governing body may adopt plans and exercise the power of zoning;  
 
 WHEREAS, the Georgia General Assembly has enacted the Georgia Planning Act of 
1989, Georgia Laws, 1989 pp. 1317-1391, Act 634, which, among other things, provides for local 
governments to adopt plans and regulations to implement plans for the protection and preservation 
of natural resources, the environment, vital areas, and land use;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City finds that the regulations contained in this Ordinance are necessary 
for the purposes of implementing its comprehensive plan adopted pursuant to the requirements of 
the Georgia Planning Act of 1989;  
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance has been prepared and considered in accordance with the 
Zoning Procedures Act, O.C.G.A. § 36-66-1 et seq.;  
 
 WHEREAS, this Ordinance is necessary for the purpose of promoting the health, safety, 
morals, convenience, order, prosperity, and general welfare of the City of Dawsonville (the 
“City”);  
 

AND WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council of the City desire to exercise their 
authority to adopt this ordinance. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE HEREBY 
ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1. 
 

Appendix A, Article VIII, of Subpart B of the Code of Dawsonville, Georgia, Section 802: Buffer 
Required is hereby amended by repealing the existing Section 802, and replacing it with the 
following which shall be a new Section 802: 
 

Subject Matter: Zoning Amendment-Expirations and Buffers 
Date of First Reading: January 20, 2022 
Date of Second Reading and Public Hearing: February 7, 2022 
Date of Adoption:  
 



 

Page 2 of 4 
 

Sec. 802. Buffer required. 

Property zoned for commercial and industrial uses shall provide a buffer, as defined by these 
regulations, along any rear or side property lines abutting a residential district or abutting an alley 
across from a specified residential district, provided that no buffer shall extend within 15 feet of a 
public right-of-way line. Minimum buffer widths shall be established in accordance with the 
following stipulations.  

1. When an HB, CBD, or NB district abuts a residential district, a setback of 40 feet shall 
be provided, including a 30-foot buffer.  

2. When an LI or CIR district abuts a residential district, a setback of 60 feet shall be 
provided, including a 50-foot buffer.  

3. When any district abuts a TB district, a ten-foot planted landscape buffer shall be 
provided on property which abuts the TB district.  

4. Properties zoned residential in common subdivision developments shall provide a 20-
foot undisturbed buffer along any of the development adjoining property lines.   

It shall be the responsibility of the developer to designate required buffers on construction 
plans and provide tree save to delineate buffer areas to ensure that existing vegetation within 
required buffers is maintained, unless disturbance of the buffer is approved by the planning director 
or designee as specifically provided herein.  Wherever a buffer, in the determination of the 
Planning Director or his designee, is so sparsely vegetated that it does not achieve the buffer 
purpose of visually screening and separating properties, it shall be the duty of the developer to 
provide for additional plantings to achieve that purpose. 

Prohibited buffer encroachments include, but are not limited to, buildings, pavement, 
parking, service areas, detention ponds, roads, septic tanks, septic drain fields, walls. 

A buffer may be disturbed for approved access and utility crossings including, but not limited 
to, water and sewer lines, drainage pipes, drainage swells, privacy fence and gas lines if it does so 
via perpendicular crossing. Privacy fence installed parallel shall be installed along adjoining 
property line and or along the 20-foot buffer line. In addition, the removal of non-native, invasive 
species is allowed within the buffer zone at the discretion of the planning director. Any approved 
buffer disturbance must be accompanied by buffer replanting in order to achieve the buffer purpose 
of visual screening and separation. 

It shall be the responsibility of the property owner of the lot to be used or built upon to 
maintain existing vegetation within required buffers and to replant where sparsely vegetated or 
install fencing as approved to achieve the desired screening. Installation of vegetation or fencing 
may be phased in accordance with approved building plans.  
 

SECTION 2. 
 
Appendix A, Article IX of Subpart B of the Code of Dawsonville, Georgia, Section 917: 
Expiration of Conditional Use, Variance and Zoning Approval, is hereby amended by 
repealing the existing Section 917 and replacing it with the following which shall be a new Section 
917:  
 



 

Page 3 of 4 
 

Sec. 917. Expiration of conditional use, variance  and zoning approval. 

a. If, after one year from the date the governing body approves a conditional use permit or the 
planning commission approves a variance, action has not been taken with the city to utilize 
the property in accordance therewith (such as securing a development permit, business 
license, or taking other actions involving obtaining a city permit, certificate or license 
showing a reliance thereon) the approval of the conditional use permit or variance as the case 
may be shall expire. At such point, the conditional use permit or variance shall be null, void 
and of no further force or effect. Prior to any expiration of approval, the owner of the property 
in question may petition the governing body for a modification or extension of variance or 
conditional use approval. Any such extension shall be valid for one year from the date of 
approval. Only one such extension shall be permitted.   

b. If a landowner takes action with the city to utilize the property in accordance with a 
conditional use permit and then ceases or abandons that conditional use for a continuous 
period of one year or more, the conditional use shall lapse, expire and be of no further validity.  

c.       Any approved zoning of property where there has been no application for land disturbance 
permit submitted within twenty-four months from the date of zoning approval shall result in 
a notice being delivered to the owner and the zoning applicant, if different, advising that a 
city-initiated rezoning to a constitutional zoning designation for the subject property may 
occur if no land disturbance permit application is tendered within thirty days and approved 
ninety days of said notice. Upon no land disturbance permit application being tendered and 
approved within the timelines set forth in this paragraph, the property shall be placed upon a 
city council agenda for consideration of a city-initiated rezoning.     

 
SECTION 3. 

 
If any section, provision or clause of any part of this Ordinance shall be declared invalid 

or unconstitutional, or if the provisions of any part of this Ordinance as applied to any particular 
situation or set of circumstances shall be declared invalid or unconstitutional, such invalidity shall 
not be construed to affect the portions of this Ordinance not so held to be invalid, or the application 
of this Ordinance to other circumstances not so held to be invalid. It is hereby declared as the intent 
that this Ordinance would have been adopted had such invalid portion not been included herein. 
 

SECTION 4.  
 

All Ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed. 
 

SECTION 5.  
 

This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption, the public good demanding the same. 
 
  



 

Page 4 of 4 
 

SO ADOPTED AND ORDAINED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day 
of ________________, 2022. 
 

MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY  
 COUNCIL 
 
 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
             
             
       William Illg, Council Member Post 2 
 
             
             
       John Walden, Council Member Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Council Member Post 4 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk   
 
 
 



                                           
 

 

    
     SUBJECT:   MODIFICATION REQUEST FOR IMPROVEMENT TO WINNERS CIRCLE  

 
     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/07/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST: 
 

    TO CONSIDER REQUEST FROM CINDY ELLIOTT TO MODIFY THE WINNERS CIRCLE TO 
INCLUDE A COVERED PORTICO AND TO IMPROVE THE EXTERIOR FAÇADE OF THE 
MUSEUM ENTRANCE      

 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

ITEM 7 IN THE LEASE AGREEMENT STATES THE FOLLOWING: 
 

Improvements.  To the extent Lessee desires to modify, change or improve the Museum Space for 
Lessee’s intended use, all such costs shall be borne by Lessee, and no such costs shall be the 
responsibility of the Lessor.  Any plans for modifications or improvements must be presented and 
approved in writing by Lessor prior to initiation of any change, modification or construction.  
 

NOTE: TO DATE, THE 2022 LEASE AGREEMENT WITH THE MUSEUM HAS NOT BEEN EXECUTED TO INCLUDE 
THE WINNERS CIRCLE AS A PART OF THE RENTAL SPACE.  CHANGES CONCERNING THE LEASE HAVE BEEN 
REQUESTED BY THE DIRECTOR AND ATTORNEY FOR THE DAWSONVILLE HISTORY MUSEUM. 
 

STAFF IS CONCERNED FOR STABILITY AND BUILDABILITY OF EXISTING CONCRETE AREA AND FOR 
LOCATION OF THE CHRISTMAS TREE    

 

     OPTIONS: 
 

1. DENY CONSTRUCTION TO MODIFY THE WINNERS CIRCLE 
2. ALLOW CONSTRUCTION, IF MUSEUM HAS FUNDING AVAILABLE 
3. TABLE PENDING OPINION FROM UNIVERSAL CONCEPTS (CHRISTMAS DÉCOR 

COMPANY), AN ENGINEERING REPORT AND THE FIRE MARSHAL 
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 

      
REQUESTED BY: Bob Bolz, City Manager______ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   10     
 

 

 





bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight

bbanister
Highlight



 

 



 



 



                                           
 

     

     SUBJECT:                        CHARTER AMENDMENT ORDINANCE_______________________ 
   

     CITY COUNCIL MEETING DATE:  02/07/2022    
   
 

 

     BUDGET INFORMATION:    GL ACCOUNT #        

   Funds Available from: _____ Annual Budget    _____ Capital Budget    Other________  

 Budget Amendment Request from Reserve: _____Enterprise Fund    _____General Fund 
 

 

     PURPOSE FOR REQUEST:  FIRST READING AND ADOPTION 
 
 

Ordinance No. 03-2022: An Ordinance To Amend The Charter Of The City Of Dawsonville For The Purpose Of 
Reapportionment Of Representative Districts Pursuant To O.C.G.A. § 36-35-3 And § 36-35-4.1 (First Reading 
and Adoption: February 7, 2022; Second Reading and Final Adoption: February 21, 2022) 

 

 

 

     HISTORY/ FACTS / ISSUES: 
 

• GMRC DEVELOPED NEW DISTRICT POST MAPS AS A RESULT OF THE 2020 CENSUS DATA AND 
PRESENTED TO COUNCIL ON 12/20/2021.  REDISTRICTING CAN BE ACHIEVED THROUGH A 
CHARTER AMENDMENT AND DOES NOT REQUIRE LEGISLATIVE APPROVAL FROM THE STATE  
 

• AS REQUIRED, CHARTER AMENDMENT HAS BEEN ADVERTISED ACCORDING TO GUIDELINES 
AND A COPY OF THE AMENDMENT HAS BEEN RECORDED WITH THE DC SUPERIOR COURT 
CLERK.   

 
       
 

     OPTIONS: 
      
 
 

     RECOMMENDED SAMPLE MOTION: 
   
 
 
REQUESTED BY:               Mike Eason, Mayor/Kevin Tallant, City Attorney ____ 

DAWSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY FOR  

AGENDA ITEM #   11     
 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 03-2022 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CHARTER OF THE CITY OF DAWSONVILLE 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF REAPPORTIONMENT OF REPRESENTATIVE DISTRICTS 
PURSUANT TO O.C.G.A. § 36-35-3 AND § 36-35-4.1 
 
WHEREAS, the Charter of the City of Dawsonville, Georgia provides in Section 5.11(e) there  
  shall be four (4) council member districts of approximately equal populations that  
  shall be created and modified as required. 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Dawsonville’s current voting district posts were created utilizing data  
  obtained from the 2010 United States Census; 
 
WHEREAS, the City utilized the services of the Georgia Mountain Regional Commission to 

analyze available data and information from the most recent decennial census to 
describe population growth and change; 

 
WHEREAS,  the Georgia Mountain Regional Commission determined population growth  
  and shifts resulted in uneven voting districts; 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that such reapportionment is   
  necessary due to the addition and shift of the population of the City of   
  Dawsonville since the previous census and thus have determined the below  
  Charter amendment reapportioning said Council Voting Districts is necessary; 
 
WHEREAS, Article IX, Section II, Paragraph II of the Constitution of the State of Georgia,  
  titled Home Rule for Municipalities, permits the General Assembly of the State of 
  Georgia to provide by law for the self-government of municipalities, which the  
  General Assembly has done with The Municipal Home Rule Act of 1965,   
  O.C.G.A. § 36-35-1, et seq.; 
 
WHEREAS, the United States Constitution requires voting districts be drawn to give maximum 
  effect to one-person/one-vote as required by the 14th Amendment to the   
  Constitution; 
 
WHEREAS, O.C.G.A. § 36-35-4.1 authorizes municipalities to reapportion election districts  
  for the next municipal elections when the municipality is on notice wherein  
  districts may be unconstitutionally out of balance; 

Subject Matter: Charter Amendment – Redistricting 
First Reading and Adoption:  February 7, 2022 

Second Reading and Final Adoption: February 21, 2022 
Publication Dates: Feb. 2, 2022, Feb. 9, 2022, Feb. 16, 2022 

Filed with DC Clerk of Court (publication version):  January 27, 2022 
Filed with DC Clerk of Court (adopted version):  ______________ 

Filed with Georgia Secretary of State: ______________ 
 

 
 



 

 
 
 
 
WHEREAS, Georgia law also establishes each reapportioned district shall be formed of  
  contiguous territory with boundary lines be at the center of streets or other well- 
  defined boundaries, the variations in populations among the districts created  
  comply with the one person-one vote requirements of the Constitution, and the  
  reapportionment is limited to the extent necessary to establish one person-one  
  vote limits and that the number of representative districts may not be changed,  
  O.C.G.A. § 36-35-4.1(b); 
 
WHEREAS, the data obtained and analyzed by the Georgia Mountain Regional Commission, 

using criteria and methods where are generally accepted in the field of demography 
and relying on data that is generally relied upon by demographers, establishes the 
current district lines must be revised to comply with the one person-one vote 
mandate of the United States Constitution and the requirements of O.C.G.A. § 36-
35-4.1(b); 

 
WHEREAS, a notice of the proposed Charter Amendment, authorized by the General   
  Assembly pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 36-35-3 was published in the Legal Organ for  
  Dawson County for each of three (3) weeks within sixty (60) days of the final  
  action on this ordinance, O.C.G.A. § 35-35-3(b)(1); 
 
WHEREAS, the title of these Ordinances shall have been read and the Ordinance duly adopted  
  at two (2) consecutive City Council meetings not less than seven (7) nor more  
  than sixty (60) days apart, as required by Georgia law; 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, the Mayor and Council for the City of Dawsonville, at consecutive 
Regular meetings of the Governing Authority for the City of Dawsonville, does HEREBY 
DECLARE AND ORDAIN as follows: 
 

1. The statements and conclusions contained in the “Whereas” paragraphs above are made 
the findings of fact of the City Council. 
 

2. Any previous maps, depictions, or representations of the voting district posts found in the 
Charter of the City of Dawsonville are hereby REPEALED in their Entirety. 
 

3. A new Appendix A is hereby enacted and described as shown in the attached Exhibit 1 
illustrating the new district lines. 
 

4. The City Attorney is directed to provide notice of this redistricting to the Georgia Secretary 
of State and to the Legislative Reapportionment Office within 30 days of this Ordinance, 
and to the Office of the United States Attorney General, to the extent the law requires such 
communication. 

 



 

 
 
 
SO ADOPTED AND ORDAINED by the City Council of Dawsonville, Georgia, this _____ day 
of ________________, 2022. 
 
 

MAYOR AND DAWSONVILLE CITY  
 COUNCIL 
 
 

By:        
       Mike Eason, Mayor 

 
 
       
Caleb Phillips, Council Member Post 1 

 
             
             
       William Illg, Council Member Post 2 
 
             
             
       John Walden, Council Member Post 3 
 
 
             
       Mark French, Council Member Post 4 
ATTESTED TO BY: 
 
 
       
Beverly A. Banister, City Clerk   
 
 



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1



Exhibit 1


	1. 02.07.2022 AGENDA City Council Regular Meeting
	7. Executive Summary For Agenda Items CONSENT AGENDA
	7a. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MINUTES
	7a. 2 1.20.2022 MINUTES.draft
	7b. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items DDA REAPPOINTMENT
	8. 1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY ZA C2200079 Public Hearing 2-7-22
	8. 2 ZA C2200079_CRAWFORD
	9. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items ZONING ORD AMENDMENT
	9. 2 02-2022 Zoning Amendment Ordinance 2021 (expirations and buffers)
	Sec. 802. Buffer required.
	Sec. 917. Expiration of conditional use, variance  and zoning approval.

	10. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items MUSEUM UPGRADES
	10. 2 MUSEUM DOCS
	10. 3  pics of museum
	11. 1 Executive Summary For Agenda Items CHARTER AMENDMENT ORDINANCE
	11. 2 03-2022 Charter Amendment w. Exhibit
	03-2022 Charter Amendment Reapportionment of Representative Districts - FINAL.pdf
	03-2022 Exhibit 1.pdf




